
Page 1 of 8 

                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee meeting held in Upper Greenhead 

House 
Monday 4 March 2024, 4.30pm 

 

Govs present: John Holroyd (Chair); Lisa Wilkinson (from 16.31); Richard 
Armstrong (Vice Chair); Simon Lett (Principal) 

 

In attendance:  Mohammed Usman (Associate Governor); Lauren Metcalfe 
(DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); Sharon Roper (Clerk) 

 

Apologies:  Adrian Barrass; Chris Kneale; Connie Laing; Richard King  
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
apologies, 
chairing 
 

 
JHO welcomed participants, and Lauren Metcalfe (LME) 
and Sarah Walters (SWA) to their first Finance & Estates 
meeting.  
Apologies as above. 
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest. 

 
 

 
3. Minutes 15/1/24 
 

 
3.1 Finance & Estates minutes 15/1/24, previously 
circulated. 
Minutes approved by Committee, signed by Chair, returned 
to Clerk for filing. 
 
3.2  Matters arising not covered on agenda: 
Matters arising/outstanding actions document previously 
circulated. 
SLE has updates on the matters arising, Clerk to update 
document and circulate to committee members.  
1. (13/11/23 Min 4.5), £299,000 contingency, budget has 
been recast. 
2. (13/11/23 Min 4.7), Budget for pay looks too high, budget 
now recast.  
3. (13/11/23 Min 4.8), check depreciation figure in budget is 
correct, this is now looked at monthly. 
4. (13/11/23 Mins 6.9, 6.11, 12) photocopying contract, the 
new contract can’t be cancelled.  
5. (25/9/23 Min 5.6), Pay costs, there is more information in 
the accounts in terms of pay increases and what are costs 
for additional staff. 

 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 8 

6. (15/1/24 Min 4.15), Accounts to show in-month figures, 
now in the monthly figures. 
7 (15/1/24 Min 4.18) £10,000 difference between the cash 
flow and bank balance, LME will investigate and confirm by 
email to F&E committee members. 
 

 
 
 
 
LME 

 
4. December & 
January accounts 
& narrative 

 
4. Committee noted December 2023 accounts and narrative 
and considered January 2024 management accounts & 
narrative, all previously circulated.  
 
LME summarised key points from the accounts: 
1. KWO prepared December and January’s accounts and 
recast the budget.  
2. As of the end of January, surplus was £594,000, slightly 
down on the same period last year, and more than the 
amount in the recast budget, this is driven by timing 
differences.  
2. The restated budget focussed on additional income from 
ESFA, increase of costs relating to pay increases and Hirst 
Building and processing depreciation.  
Operating surplus is recast at £1.043 million. 
3. ESFA income is £16.3 million, other income wasn’t recast 
and is currently £83,000 higher than the recast budget. 
4. Pay costs are £5.7 million at January and expected to be 
£11.5 million at the year end. The pension contribution 
increase of 5% is included. 
5. Cleaning staff costs differ by £61,000 to budget, there 
have been significant increases in cleaning personnel to 
cover the Hirst building. JNO has confirmed cleaning is now 
fully staffed and this increase in costs is covered by the 
increase in other income. 
6. Teaching staff costs are 73.9% of total staff costs at 
January, and 73.3% for the year. 
Support staff costs are 26.1% YTD, and 26.7% for the year. 
Payroll costs are 67.9% of total income and 68.8% for the 
year, this is where we should be in respect of overall payroll 
costs. 
7. Non-pay expenditure is £2.1 million, slightly lower than 
budget.  
8. £8000 has gone through for Park Avenue car park for 
resurfacing, fencing is still to be done which will be an extra 
cost.  
JHO asked if this will be P&L rather than balance sheet – it 
will.  
9. There is a charge of £285,000 for exam fees in January 
and there will be a further £200,000 in March. This is 
£30,000 less than expected.  
10. RAR asked if the increase in cleaning staff is 
permanent, it is, GC has been operating below capacity for 
most of the academic year, key areas have not been 
cleaned and teaching staff have complained.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 8 

RAR asked if more cleaners will be needed in 18 months 
when the building work is complete, and the site is bigger, 
SLE said this will need reviewing.  
LME said bank cleaning staff have been recruited with zero 
hour contracts, if they are being used more this can be 
factored in. 
LWI asked if the cleaners are doing additional work – no, 
it’s general day to day cleaning.  
SLE said there were several cleaners on long term sick who 
have now left.  
11. RAR said the balance between teaching and support 
staff appears to be increasing towards support staff and 
asked for a benchmark compared to similar colleges.  
12. JHO said in the general expenses in the non-pay 
section £291,000 was spent in exam fees this year and 
£9,000 last year and asked for this to be investigated.  
RAR said that last year’s figure might be down to exam 
cancellations during covid and receiving a refund.   
JHO said that a previous postholder provided for exam fees 
a year in advance.  
13. Bank balances and investments are £5.9 million, 
several investments matured in February. LME will discuss 
reinvestment with SCE and SLE. 
RAR said £1.5 million is invested and our surplus is almost 
£6 million, and asked what return we are getting on £4.5 
million that is probably in Barclays.  
LME will investigate what we are allowed to do as this falls 
under Managing Public Money, a guideline from the 
government is due to be issued in March. 
MUS said the investments we use are non-risk and 
guaranteed.  
JHO said an investment tab has been added to the monthly 
accounts.  
14. LWI asked what the apprentice levy is – it’s a 
government incentive and goes to a regional fund that we 
legally have to pay a percentage of our staffing costs into. 
We use this pot to take on apprentices and offer staff 
training, this helps us get back what we’ve paid in.  
15. Accruals in January are £278,000, this is mainly down 
to utilities, invoices for premises and the pension grant. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Recast Budget 
2023/24 

 
LME summarised the recast Budget 2023/24, previously 
circulated. 
1. KWO reforecast the budget and handed over to LME. 
2. A position was taken at December based on the 
predictions at the end of the year.  
3. Other income was not recast.   
4. The end column is already at variance versus the recast 
budget. It is a positive variance which offsets the increase in 
the cleaning staff.   
This will roll forward as variances for 6 months. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 8 

5.The administration line has a difference of £18,000, which 
links to the old reprographics contract, paying the old 
supplier and losing out on the vat element.  
6. There are some difference in the costs in the new budget 
which LME is keeping an eye on.  
7. RAR said in the original budget he questioned the other 
income figure, which was low, and asked for a realistic 
figure for other income in the budget for 2024/25.  
LME confirmed budget planning has already started. 
8. MUS asked if the increase in utilities is due to Hirst 
building, the figure has moved from £480,000 to £570,000. 
LME will clarify this.   
RAR said Hirst should be more energy efficient and costs 
should fall. MUS said it might be down to upfront costs and 
these may drop in years two and three.  
There was an increase in premises due to new items 
bought for Hirst.   
9. JHO asked if Hirst is now finished – there are outstanding 
snags and heating is one of the issues.   
10. CLT have discussed the campus fee and feel that the 
fall in income experienced in the last two years is probably 
down to cost-of-living increases. Although revenue has 
fallen, the fee still generates £50,000 net income and CLT 
want to continue with the fee.  
The plan is to breakdown, at enrolment, what the campus 
fee is spent on, explain that all colleges are having to make 
savings recently and explain that’s why a voluntary 
contribution is requested.   
LWI asked if the campus fee charge will stay the same – it 
will.  
LWI asked if our competitor colleges have a campus fee – 
there appears to be differences between colleges, and SLE 
is unaware of benchmarking data.  
LWI asked if we are comparable to other colleges – Maple 
group colleges have all historically asked for campus fees. 
GC’s fee used to be compulsory, ESFA guidelines are clear 
that you cannot ask for compulsory top-up fees, it’s now 
made clear that this is a voluntary fee.   
LME suggested asking NorVIC group to add a question 
about campus fees to future surveys.   
F&E committee asked for benchmarking data. 
11. In relation to future budgets, RAR said there has been a 
significant increase in non-pay expenditure and wants to 
understand why and is there any offsetting balancing that 
can be done. If the increase is not supporting teaching 
costs it needs to be queried further. 
 
F&E committee are happy to recommend the recast budget 
to Corporation for approval.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
LME 



Page 5 of 8 

 
6. Estate 
Management 
Update 

 
SWA provided a verbal update on estate management: 
 
1. The snagging list for Hirst is ongoing; snags are being 
resolved and are being replaced by newly identified issues. 
The list is revised every Friday. 
2. Heating continues to be an issue; two laboratories are 
especially cold. 
3. Phase 3 demolition started 4/3/24, channel work is being 
done near the library, but otherwise they are starting by 
Greenhead Park and working inwards. The steels are due 
to be fitted in July.  
4. Premises team have been asked to monitor noise levels 
with decibel meters, so the impact in classrooms and exam 
rooms can be understood 
GT are aware that their work schedule may have to be 
adjusted or stopped during exams. 
5. The Muga was handed over on 28/2/24. Options and 
costs are being considered to raise the fence, which is too 
low, especially at the edges of the car park.   
6. Park Avenue car park was resurfaced at February half 
term. Fencing and white lining will be in place at Easter. 
SWA will look at options for signage and the feasibility of 
fines.  
7. Shrubbery has been cleared from the exterior walls that 
are leaning, and SWA is meeting with the contractor on 
7/3/24 to understand the work required on our part of the 
wall and the cost.   
8. SST has a potential solution for the issues with the 
temperature in Cooksey, like canopies with solar panels 
that can power a heat pump, and which can also cool. SWA 
is looking at costs and viability and will ask specialist 
contractors to advise.  
RAR said the costs might be offset by grants. SWA said 
when the public sector decarbonisation fund is released, 
you get a month to apply, so a proposal has to be ready. 
9. Following a fire risk assessment 35 actions have been 
identified. SWA is working on a spreadsheet which will be 
shared with governors, some of the actions are quick fixes, 
and others she has started to look at costings.  
Significant items are fire doors, and current fire regulation 
says that every room including cupboards must have a 
sounder and smoke detection.  
Fire specialists will be asked to provide a detailed report 
and CIF funding may become available at the end of the 
year. 
SWA feels the 3-6 month timeline for these projects is 
unachievable but will have evidence that we are taking 
action. The fire safety work must be done regardless of it 
we receive funding.   
10. RAR said that GC’s energy usage has not been 
monitored yet.  
47% of our energy is used out of hours.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 8 

SWA is looking at options with an education focused broker, 
if energy is bought via them, they support sustainability and 
monitoring of energy usage. GC’s electricity contract can’t 
move yet but the gas contract renews next year. 
SWA said that a cultural & behavioural change in college 
will save energy. 
11. RAR said our other buildings may be able to move to 
sustainable heating solutions, and grants may be available 
for these.  
SWA has a contact she will speak to about the Cooksey 
temperature issue, and she will ask about options for our 
other buildings too. 
12. RAR asked if our new single floor buildings that will be  
built after demolition will have solar panels and heat pumps. 
SWA will find out.  
13. SWA has asked DfE about slippage on the completion 
date due to the amount of asbestos that was found. A 
slippage date has not been agreed yet.  
14. JHO asked about an estate maintenance plan. 
SWA will compile an estates strategy, asset management 
plan and funding plans, and then a capital proposal form will 
come to governors on an annual basis. This will help 
budgeting by showing what is in the 5 year capital pipeline.   
 

SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 

 
7. Catering 
 

 
7. SWA gave a verbal catering report: 
1.Visits to GC by contractors interested in the catering 
tender are scheduled for next week.  
Twelve suppliers expressed an interest on the portal, only  
four of them have booked a visit, Aramark is one of them. 
The tender deadline is 20/3/24, presentations from the 
shortlisted contractors will be 9/4/24.  
2. Prior to this MMI and SWA will discuss the in-house 
model versus an external contract from the information 
provided by Red Box consultants, a proposal will go via 
CLT and onto governors.  
3. The panel on 9/4/24 will include student representation.  
RAR volunteered to sit on the panel unless ABA wants to 
do it as he has previously expressed an interest.  
4. During the catering presentations, they will be asked 
about innovation, their ideas to see how forward thinking 
they are, and their mobilisation plan. 
5. In the presentation they will bring examples of their food, 
SWA and MMI will go and visit their current contracts to see 
the reality of their catering.  
6. RAR said that governors want to see direct comparisons 
for in-house versus an external supplier. 
SWA said that the figures are currently being worked 
through. 
7. LWI asked about the timeline – a new contractor will 
have to be in place for September and SWA feels this is 
achievable. 
8. RAR asked what utilities will be available in the additional 
catering area in the rebuilt hall. This information will be 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
ABA/RAR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 8 

required for the upcoming presentations.  SWA said she is 
currently discussing this with GT and Mace.  
9. JHO asked about the process to agree the new catering 
offer - it will come to F&E on 7/5/24 and then go to 
Corporation.  
 

 
SWA 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 

 
8. New Build Risk 
Register 
 

 
The New Build Risk Register was considered by committee 
members, previously circulated. 
1. A&R committee (26/2/24) gave clear actions for the risk 
register and this will involve SWA, SLE, and EWY. The new 
format will then be applied to the main college risk register.  
2. JHO asked about the amber actions, these will continue 
to be monitored as active risks, and they include noise and 
service disruptions.  
Further rerouting of services will take place at Easter, after 
that there should be no further disruption to utilities and 
supplies. 
3. RAR said four months after handover Hirst is still an 
amber risk after mitigation, governors are concerned, and 
this should be lodged with DfE, and a timeline is also 
required to reduce the risks. 
4. LWI asked about the terms of the contract and timelines 
to get issues fixed.  
DfE holds the contract which has never been shared with 
GC. LWI said that exam results can be affected and DfE 
needs to display greater urgency.  
5. RAR referred to ‘Hirst building not working as intended 
and GC working in an incomplete building’. 
CLT need to revisit these risks, SWA said this can be 
lowered from amber.  
6. RAR said heating is a recurring issue.  
After 12 months this will become our responsibility, heating 
remains on the snagging list and SWA said it won’t be 
removed until the issue is resolved.     
7. RAR noted that heating, lifts, and leaks are recurrent 
substantial issues that must be resolved, and after 6 
months DfE must be advised that we are not satisfied, or 
GC will take action.  
SLE said that GC needs to see what Hirst is like as a 
functioning building in the summer, it might be too hot.  
GT have penalty clauses if the building is too hot in warm 
weather.   
8. SWA will ask at what point do the defects In Hirst tip into 
taking further action. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Govs/CLT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CLT 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 

 
9. Standing 
Orders 
 

 
Standing orders, previously circulated. 
Amendments are highlighted in red. 
 
Committee members were happy with the amendments. 
 

 
 



Page 8 of 8 

 
10. Scheme of 
delegation 

 
Scheme of Delegation, previously circulated. 
Amendments are highlighted in red. 
 
Clerk said she was expecting further suggestions to the 
Scheme of Delegation from the External Governance 
Review. 
 
The following amendments were requested: 
- A.04.03 Director of Finance & Funding needs to be moved 
into the senior executive officer column.  
-A.10.05 Special Committee to be changed to --
Remuneration Committee.  
-Add into document that Remuneration committee meet at 
least twice per year. 
-B.11.04 & B.11.05 Head of Payroll to be changed to 
Finance Manager and Principal to be added as he signs off 
the payroll. 
 
JHO will email the clerk with further amendments he has 
identified for the Scheme of Delegation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk  
 
 
JHO/Clerk 
 

 
11. Policies to 
review 
 

 
None to review. 

 

 
12. Any other 
business 

 
None. 

 
 
 

 
13. Confidentiality 

 
Nothing identified. 

 

 
14. Date next mtg 
 

 
Next F&E; *Rearranged * Tuesday 7 May 24, at College.  
 
Clerk to email the new date to all committee members. 
 

 
 
 
Clerk 

 
 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 14/3/24 
 
Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 7/5/24 


